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Dear Mr McClue

T&CP (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015
& Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Regulations 1990 

ROYAL NATIONAL THROAT, NOSE AND EAR HOSPITAL SITE 330 GRAY'S INN ROAD (AND FRONTING SWINTON STREET AND WICKLOW STREET) LONDON WC1
Application No. 2020/5593/P

Thank you for your letter of 2 December 2020 regarding the above application for planning permission. On the basis of the information available to date, we offer the following advice to assist your authority in determining the application. 

Historic England Advice
The proposals will result in some harm (less than substantial in NPPF terms) to the surrounding conservation area through the marked increase in scale behind the historic Gray’s Inn frontage. However, we acknowledge that they will also provide a series of public benefits. In accordance with NPPF policy 196, we advise you to weigh the harm against the public benefits when determining the application.

Significance 

The significance of this part of Kings Cross Conservation Area relates primarily to the historic frontage buildings along Gray’s Inn Road, particularly the Victorian (1877) classical frontage block to the former Royal National Throat, Nose and Ear Hospital. The development site occupies the rest of the former hospital grounds, which developed piecemeal during the 20th century and most of the buildings do not make a positive contribution to the conservation area. 

Impact

The proposals, broadly, are for the redevelopment of the rear part of the former hospital site with a variety of new buildings of up to 13 stories.  The front elevation of the historic unlisted building at No. 330 Gray’s Inn Road would be retained and restored, and the building would be extended upwards behind the façade. The tallest building of the development would be located directly behind, creating a contrast of scale to the historic Gray’s Inn Road frontage. A series of new routes through the currently impermeable site would be created in association with new public realm.

The proposed development would introduce a contrast in scale between the proposed new and retained old buildings that will cause some harm to the significance of the conservation area. In addition, the new roof extension to the Victorian building at No. 330 Gray’s Inn Road appears to be at odds with its classical proportions and would, in our view, somewhat reduce the contribution that building makes to the character and appearance of the conservation area.

Policy 

Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires Local Planning Authorities to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of conservation areas.         

Section 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out how the historic environment should be conserved and enhanced, and makes it clear at paragraph 190 that local authorities, which considering proposals that affect a heritage asset, should seek to avoid or minimise any conflict between the conservation of the heritage asset and any aspect of the proposal.

Paragraph 193 states that when considering the impact of a proposed development on a heritage asset (which includes its setting), local planning authorities should give ‘great weight’ to preserving the asset’s significance. Any harm or loss should require clear and convincing justification. 

Where harm is caused to a heritage asset, the NPPF requires decision makers to determine whether the harm is substantial, or less than substantial. If the harm is deemed to be less than substantial, paragraph 196 of the NPPF requires that harm to be weighed against the public benefits of the proposals.

Position

We were engaged in pre-application discussions on the proposals in 2020, and broadly supported the development approach whilst recognising that development of this scale would inevitably cause some harm to the significance of the surrounding conservation area.  

In our view, this harm is at the low end of less than substantial in the language of the NPPF. In that regard, the harm caused to the significance of the conservation area would need to be weighed against public benefits (NPPF paragraph 196). We acknowledge the potential for a range of public benefits arising from improvements to the urban realm, the introduction of new routes through the currently impermeable site and the removal of buildings that detract from the conservation area.

Your authority will need to be confident that the harm set out above has been clearly and convincingly justified (paragraph 193, NPPF) before weighing that harm against the public benefits of the scheme (paragraph 196, NPPF).


Recommendation
Historic England has concerns regarding the application on heritage grounds.


Your authority should take these representations into account and seek amendments, safeguards or further information as set out in our advice. If there are any material changes to the proposals, or you would like further advice, please contact us.


This response relates to designated heritage assets only. If the proposals meet the Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service’s published consultation criteria we recommend that you seek their view as specialist archaeological adviser to the local planning authority.

The full GLAAS consultation criteria are on our webpage at the following link:

https://www.historicengland.org.uk/services-skills/our-planning-services/greater-london-archaeology-advisory-service/our-advice/

Yours sincerely



Michael Dunn
Principal Inspector of Historic Buildings and Areas
E-mail: michael.dunn@HistoricEngland.org.uk
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